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Message From the Chairwoman

As fiscal year 1985 drew to a close,
the United States was once again facing
a record-breaking trade deficit. The Com-
mission experienced an increased de-
mand on its resources as more and more
domestic producers found their way to
our doorstep, seeking relief from import
competition. Products ranging from basic
carbon steel and semiconductors to Cab-
bage Patch dolls were the subject of
Commission investigations. A significant
number of complaints were also received
from agricultural producers, reflecting
the continuation of trade pressures in
that sector. Petitioners represented not
only ‘““basic”’ industries trying to regain
competitiveness lost as comparative ad-
vantages shifted, but also new, in-
novative technologies threatened by the
unfair trading practices of foreign
competitors. .

Forces beyond our immediate con-
trol contributed to an increased work-
load. The strength of the U.S. dollar
during the year continued to price U.S.
goods out of foreign markets and draw
foreign products into U.S. markets.
However, partially masked by the high
value of the dollar were fundamental
shifts in the competitive position of
many U.S. manufacturers in an increas-
ingly global marketplace. Both newly in-
dustrialized countries and traditional
business rivals posed challenges to
established U.S. industries.

The Commission’s caseload reflected
the broad nature of the international
trade problem. Petitions increased this
year regardless of whether imports were
““fair’’ or “‘unfairly’’ traded. The Com-
mission instituted 22 percent more in-
vestigations in fiscal year 1985 than in

fiscal year 1984, and the caseload in-
creased not only in number, but in
complexity.

Our cadre of international trade pro-
fessionals responded to this challenge by
adapting new techniques for the
preparation and analysis of cases. Exten-
sive use of the latest word-processing
technology and the introduction of per-
sonal computers allowed the staff to
cope with the substantial workload. The
Commission continued in its efforts to
staff fully each authorized position while
placing great emphasis on recruiting the
best possible candidates. The qualifica-
tions of our new employees, in terms of
education and experience, ensure that
the Commission tradition of quality out-
put in a timely manner will continue.

In addition to our import relief in-
vestigations, the Commission’s reputa-
tion for objective, quality, factfinding
reports has put the Commission in the
forefront of the effort to better under-
stand the complex forces driving interna-
tional trading patterns. As I predicted
last year, fiscal year 1985 was a year of
challenge and increased responsibility.
However, the challenge does not end
here. The Commission will continue to
play a vital role in the international trade
arena as the Nation struggles to adapt to
the new realities of the global
marketplace.
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Summary of Activities

Investigations Completed

Tariff Act of 1930:

Sec. 332 investigations

Sec. 337 investigations of al-
leged unfair practices in the
importation and sale of im-

ported products

Antidumping and countervail-
ing duty investigations
(countervailing duty 56, con-
sisting of 35 preliminary and 21
final; antidumping investiga-
tions, 129, consisting of 78
preliminary, 49 final, and 2
review)

Trade Act of 1974:

Sec. 131 and sec. 503 advice
on possible trade agreements

Sec. 201 ““escape-clause’’ cases

Sec. 603 preliminary
investigation

Trade Agreements Act of 1979, sec.
104, review of countervailing duty
cases

Agricultural Adjustment Act, sec.
22 investigations

viii

Total

27

45

185

3

2

_2
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Introduction to the
USITC

The United States International Trade
Commission is an independent, bipar-
tisan, quasi-judicial agency with broad
powers to investigate all factors relating
to the effect of U.S. foreign trade on
domestic production, employment, and
consumption. Although not charged
with a policymaking role, the Commis-
sion contributes substantially to the
development of sound, equitable interna-
tional trade policy.

Commission activities include—

—Making recommendations to the Presi-
dent regarding relief for industries
seriously injured by increasing
imports;

—Determining whether U.S. industries
are materially injured by imports that
benefit from pricing below fair value or
subsidization;

—Directing action, subject to Presidential
disapproval, against unfair trade prac-
tices such as patent infringement;

—Advising the President whether
agricultural imports interfere with
price-support programs of the U.S.
Department of Agriculture;

—Conducting studies on trade and tariff
issues and monitoring import levels;
and

—Participating in the development of
uniform statistical data on imports, ex-
ports, and domestic production and
the establishment of an international
harmonized commodity code.

By statute, the Commission may act
on its own initiative, on the petition of
interested parties, or at the request of
the President, the United States Trade
Representative, the House Ways and
Means Committee, or the Senate Finance
Committee. The Commission staff of
more than 470 men and women, in-
cluding attorneys, economists, in-
vestigators, international trade analysts,
and data systems programmers, gather
information and evaluate data to assist
the Commission in its determinations.
To get the facts and ensure that all sides
of an issue are heard, extensive
fieldwork is undertaken, and public
hearings are held in Washington, DC,

or, occasionally, in other parts of the

country. The views of interested and af-
fected parties such as labor, industry,
agriculture, importers, and consumers
are represented and evaluated in the
Commission’s work.

X



Following the receipt of a resolution on
December 31, 1984, from the Committee on
Finance of the U.S. Senate, the Commission
instituted an escape-clause investigation to
determine the impact of imports on the
nonrubber footwear industry. Among 10
Members of Congress testifying at the April
16, 1985, hearing on nonrubber footwear were
U.S. Senators (1) John C. Danforth, Republican
from Missouri, and (2) George J. Mitchell,
Democrat from Maine. During fiscal year 1985,
in the course of completing 269 investigations,
37 Members of Congress presented personal

testimony before the Commission.




Part 1. Investigative
Highlights

Investigations Under Sections
201 and 203(i) of the Trade

Act of 1974, the *‘Escape
Clause”’ o

Section 201 of the Trade Act of
1974 (19 U.S.C. 2251) provides a pro-
cedure whereby domestic industries
seriously injured by increased imports
can petition for import relief in the form
of tariffs or quantitative restrictions (im-
port quotas).! To be found eligible for
relief under section 201, industries need
not prove that an unfair trade practice
exists, as is necessary under the
antidumping and countervailing duty
laws and section 337 of the Tariff Act of

- 1930. However, under section 201, a
greater degree of injury, “‘serious’’ in-
jury, must be found to exist. In addition,
relief under section 201, although tem-
porary, should be tailored to the needs
of the injured industry.

The criteria for import relief set forth
in section 201 of the Trade Act of 1974
are based on article XIX of the General
Agreement on Tariffs and Trade (GATT),
an international agreement to which the
United States is a signatory. Article XIX
of the GATT is referred to as the
“escape clause,’’ because it permits a
country to ‘“escape’’ temporarily from its
obligations under the GATT with respect
to a product when increased imports of
that product are causing or threatening
to cause serious injury to domestic pro-
ducers of a like or directly competitive
product. Commission investigations
under section 201 provide a basis for the
President to invoke article XIX.

During fiscal year 1985, the Commis-
sion completed two section 201 in-
vestigations. Of the two investigations,
the Commission made one negative
determination and one affirmative deter-
mination. The Commission instituted the
first investigation, Potassium Permanganate
(TA-201-54), on November 30, 1984, aftér
receiving a. petition for import relief filed

by the Carus Chemical Co. On April 8,
1985, the Commission determined that
potassium permanganate was not being
imported into the United States in such
increased quantities as to be a substan-
tial cause of serious injury, or threat
thereof, to the domestic potassium per-
manganate industry. Because of the
Commission’s negative determination,
no recommendation was made to the
President for import relief.

The Commission instituted the sec-
ond investigation, Nonrubber Footwear
(TA-201-55), on January 22, 1985, follow-
ing the receipt of a resolution on
December 31, 1984, from the Committee
on Finance of the U.S. Senate requesting
the Commission to investigate the im-
pact of imports on the nonrubber foot-

! The law requires the Commis-
sion to conduct such investigations
upon receipt of a petition from an en-
tity representative of a domestic in-
dustry, at the request of the President

- or the United States Trade Represen-

tative or upon resolution of the House
Committee on Ways and Means or the
Senate Committee on Finance. The
Commission also may conduct such
investigations on its own motion.. If,
as a result of an investigation, the
Commission finds that an article is be-
ing imported into the United States in
such increased quantities as to be a
substantial cause of serious injury, or
threat thereof, to the domestic in-
dustry, it must recommend to the
President the tariff or quota relief
necessary to prevent or remedy the
injury or recommend the provision of
adjustment assistance. The Commis-
sion must complete its investigation
and make its determination and any
recommendations within 6 months of
receipt of the petition, request, or
resolution. If the Commission finds in
the affirmative and recommends tariff
or quota relief, the President has an
additional 60 days in which to advise
Congress of what, if any, relief he will
provide. If the President decides to
take no action, Congress may, by
enacting a joint resolution within 90
legislative days, direct the President to
provide the relief recommended by
the Commission. If the Commission’s
determination is negative, the sec. 201
proceeding is terminated.



wear industry. The Commission deter-
mined on May 22, 1985, that imports of
nonrubber footwear were being imported
into the United States in such increased
quantities as to be a substantial cause of
serious injury, or threat thereof, to the
domestic industry. The Senate Finance
Committee’s resolution followed a deci-
sion by the Commission on June 6, 1984,
denying import relief to the nonrubber
footwear industry. The Commission’s
determination concluded investigation
No. TA-201-55, instituted on behalf of
the Footwear Industries of America, the
Amalgamated Clothing & Textile
Workers Union, AFL-CIO, and the
United Food & Commercial Workers In-
ternational Union, which filed a petition
on February 3, 1984, seeking relief from
imports of nonrubber footwear.

The Commission conducted no
““review’’ investigations under section
203 of the Trade Act during fiscal year
1985.

Investigations Under Title
VII of the Tariff Act of 1930

Under title VII of the Tariff Act of
1930 (19 U.S.C. 1671, as added by the
Trade Agreements Act of 1979), the
Commission conducts preliminary and
final investigations to determine whether
(in preliminary investigations) there is a
reasonable indication or whether (in final
investigations) a U.S. industry is
materially injured or threatened with
material injury, or the establishment of
such an industry is materially retarded,
by reason of imports of merchandise that
is being sold at less than fair value (i.e.,
dumped) or is benefiting from foreign
subsidies. The Department of Commerce
determines whether dumping or sub-
sidies exist and, if so, the margin of
dumping or amount of the subsidy.

During the course of its investigations, the
Commission receives, observes, and examines
products introduced as exhibits by petitioners
for import relief. A product used primarily to
manufacture wet suits, fabric and expanded
neoprene laminate, was the subject of a
Commission antidumping investigation in
fiscal year 1985. During the year, the Com-
mission completed 78 preliminary and 49
final antidumping investigations.



U.S. Senators (1) Jeff Bingamon, Democrat
from New Mexico, and (2) Pete Domenici,
Republican from New Mexico, testify in
support of import relief at the Commission
hearing on potassium chloride from the
U.S.S.R. The Commission instituted the
antidumping investigation in response to a
petition filed on March 30, 1984, by AMAX
Chemical, Inc., and Kerr-McGee Chemical
Corp.

Antidumping Investigations

During fiscal year 1985, the Commis-
sion completed 78 preliminary and 49
final antidumping investigations under
section 731 and 2 review investigations
under section 751 of the Tariff Act of
1930 (19 U.S.C. 1671). Of the 129 in-
vestigations completed during the fiscal
year, 56 involved steel products such as
hot-rolled carbon steel plate, carbon steel
wire rod, stainless steel sheet and strip,
welded carbon steel pipes and tubes,
stainless steel wire cloth, carbon steel

sheets, and steel wire nails. Other in-

vestigations dealt with a diverse group
of products, including titanium sponge,
choline chloride, grand and upright
pianos, castor oil products, ethyl alcohol,

- photo albums and photo album filler

pages, and cellular mobile telephones.
With respect to food products, the Com-
mission investigated such items as red
raspberries and dried salted codfish.

At the close of the fiscal year, the
Commission had 6 preliminary and 14
final antidumping investigations pend-
ing. These investigations involved a
wide range of products.

Countervailing Duty
Investigations

The Commission conducts investiga-
tions under the countervailing duty laws
only when the imports are from a coun-
try that is a signatory to the Code on
Subsidies and Countervailing Duties or
has undertaken similar obligations, or
when the subject imports enter duty
free. Most of the major free-world
trading nations have signed the Code;
some, such as Mexico, have not. With
respect to imports from countries that
have not signed the Code or undertaken
similar obligations, an injury test is
available only for products that enter the
United States free of duty under section
303(a)(2) of the Tariff Act of 1930 (19
U.S.C. 1303).



The Commission heard testimony from
U.S. Representative James Oberstar,
Republican from Minnesota, during a
conference on iron ore pellets from Brazil.
The Commission instituted the countervail-
ing duty investigation at the request of the
Cleveland-Cliffs Iron Co., Oglebay Norton
Co., Pikands Mather & Co., and the United
Steelworkers of America.

During the fiscal year, the Commis-
sion completed 35 preliminary and 21
final countervailing duty investigations.
Of the 56 investigations completed, 19
involved steel products. The remaining
37 covered a variety of products in-
cluding agricultural tillage tools, live
swine and pork, iron ore pellets, and
textile mill products and apparel.

At the close of the fiscal year, the
Commission had five final and three
preliminary countervailing duty in-
vestigations pending.

Section 751 Review
Investigations

Section 751 of the Tariff Act of 1930
(19 U.S.C. 1675) sets forth a procedure
for the review of outstanding antidump-
ing and countervailing duty determina-
tions. Under section 751, whenever the



Commission receives information
concerning, or a request for a review of,
an outstanding countervailing duty or
antidumping duty determination, it must
first determine whether there are
changed circumstances sufficient to war-
rant such a review. If there are, the
Commission conducts review investiga-
tions. In the absence of good cause, the
Commission may not conduct a review
less than 24 months after publication of
notice of the original determination.

During fiscal year 1985, the Commis-
sion completed two review investigations
under section 751: Drycleaning Machinery
From the Federal Republic of Germany
(751-TA-9) and Frozen Concentrated Orange
Juice From Brazil (751-TA-10). At the close
of the fiscal year, the Commission had
no investigations pending under section
751.

1 2

During the fiscal year, the Commission
completed a final countervailing duty
investigation on live swine and pork
products from Canada. Testifying in
support of the petition for import relief
were U.S. Representatives (1) Jim Leach,
Republican from Iowa, and (2) Berkeley
Bedell, Democrat from Iowa.

Section 104(b) Countervailing
Duty Review Investigations

During fiscal year 1985, the Commis-
sion completed four investigations under
section 104(b) of the Trade Agreements
Act of 1979 (19 U.S.C. 1671 note). Sec-
tion 104(b) requires the Commission, at
the request of a foreign government that
has signed the Subsidies Code or ex-
porters from that country, to review
outstanding orders issued under section
303 of the Tariff Act of 1930 (19 U.S.C.
1303) to determine whether a U.S. in-
dustry would be materially injured or
threatened with material injury, or
whether the establishment of an industry
would be materially retarded, if an ex-
isting countervailing duty order were to
be revoked. Petitions requesting a review
under section 104(b) must have been
filed within 3 years of the effective date
of title VII. Most of the countervailing
duty orders in effect at the time the
Trade Agreements Act went into effect
had been issued without a Commission
injury finding.

In two investigations completed
under section 104, Certain Tomato Prod-
ucts From Greece (104-TAA-23) and Sugar
Content of Certain Articles From Australia
(104-TAA-26), the Commission deter-
mined that an industry in the United
States would not be materially injured or
threatened with material injury if the ex-
isting countervailing duty order were to
be revoked. |

With respect to the other two
investigations, Oleoresins From Spain (104
TAA-24) and Oleoresins From India (104
TAA-25), the original petitions and the
Commission investigations were termi-
nated.



Section 22 Investigations

During fiscal year 1985, the Commis-
sion completed two investigations under
section 22 of the Agricultural Adjustment
Act (7 U.S.C. 624). Section 22 calls for
the Secretary of Agriculture to alert the
President when he believes agricultural
commodities are being, or are practically
certain to be, imported into the United
States in such quantities as to render or
tend to render ineffective, or materially
interfere with, U.S. Department of
Agriculture (USDA) programs, including
price-support programs, or substantially
reduce the amount of any product proc-
essed from a commodity covered by a
USDA program.

If the President agrees with the
Secretary of Agriculture, he directs the
Commission to conduct an investigation
and develop a report, including findings
and recommendations, for his considera-
tion. After receiving the Commission’s
report, the President may impose quotas
or duties (not to exceed 50 percent of the
imported product’s value) to protect the
program. In cases in which the Secretary
of Agriculture determines that an emer-
gency exists, the President may take ac-
tion before the Commission completes
the investigation and submits the report.
Any such emergency action that is taken
would continue in effect pending the
Commission’s eventual report and
recommendation.

The Commission instituted an in-
vestigation, Certain Tobacco (22-47), on
September 10, 1984, at the request of the
President, to determine whether imports
of flue- and fire-cured, dark air-cured,
and burley tobacco were being, or were
practically certain to be, imported into
the United States under such conditions
and in such quantities as to render or
tend to render ineffective, or materially

4

By direction of the President, the Commis-
sion conducts investigations under section 22
of the Agricultural Adjustment Act (7 U.S.C.
624). The Commission’s investigative report
includes findings and recommendations for
the President’s consideration. Section 22 in-
vestigations pertain to agricultural com-
modities that are being, or are practically
certain to be, imported into the United States
in such quantities as to render or tend to
render ineffective, or materially interfere
with, U.S. Department of Agriculture pro-
grams. During fiscal year 1985, the Commis-
sion completed two such investigations, Cer-
tain Tobacco and Sugar. Witnesses testifying at
the hearing on tobacco were U.S. Senators
(1) Jesse Helms, Republican from North
Carolina, and (2) Wendell Ford, Democrat
from Kentucky, and U.S. Representatives (3)
Larry Hopkins, Republican from Kentucky,
and (4) Charles Whitley, Democrat from
North Carolina. One investigation, Certain
Articles Containing Sugar, was pending at the
end of the fiscal year.



interfere with, the USDA price-support
and production adjustment programs for
tobacco. On February 11, 1985, the Com-
mission reported to the President that

- imports of certain tobacco were not
materially interfering with the USDA’s
price-support and production adjustment
programs for tobacco.

After receiving a letter from the
President on March 29, 1985, the Com-
mission instituted an investigation, Sugar
(22-49), for the purpose of determining
whether import fees for refined sugar
and liquid sugar could be modified to 1
cent per pound without resulting in
sugar being imported into the United
States in such quantities as to materially
interfere with the price-support program
of the U.S. Department of Agriculture
for sugar cane or sugar beets.

The President’s letter also stated that
he was taking emergency action under
section 22(b) of the Agricultural Adjust-
ment Act of 1933 and issuing a proc-
lamation suspending the import fees for
raw sugar and modifying the fees for
refined sugar and liquid sugar to 1 cent
per pound. The suspension and modifi-
cation of the fees would continue in ef-
fect until the Commission forwarded its
report and recommendations to the
President.

After a 5-month investigation, the
Commission reported on September 3,
1985, that import fees for raw sugar
~could be terminated and import fees for
refined sugar and liquid sugar could be
modified to 1 cent per pound without
resulting in sugar being, or practically
certain to be, imported into the United
States under such conditions and in such
quantities as to render or tend to render
ineffective, or materially interfere with, the
USDA price-support program for sugar
cane or sugar beets.

At the end of the fiscal year, there
was one investigation pending under

section 22 (Certain Articles Containing
Sugar (22-48)), which was instituted by
the Commission following receipt of a
letter from the President on March 22,
1985. The President directed that the
Commission determine whether imports
of certain dry iced tea mixes, beverage
bases, cocktail mixes, and sugar/dextrose
mixtures. all the foregoing containing

over 10 percent sugar and classifiable in
Tariff Schedules of the United States
(TSUS) item 183.05, are being, or are
practically certain to be, imported into
the United States under such conditions
and in such quantities as to render or
tend to render ineffective, or materially
interfere with, the price-support program
of the U.S. Department of Agriculture
for sugar cane or sugar beets.



Statutory Timetable for
Antidumping Investigations

(in days)

Commerce
Affirmative
Preliminary

115

Commerce
Affirmative
Final

45

usITC

Commerce
Negative
Final

Extended Case
Commerce
Affirmative

Final

45

Final

Extended Case
Commerce
Negative
Final

Commerce
Affirmative
Final

75

usITC
Final

Commerce
Negative
Final

Commerce

Negative
Preliminary

135

Extended Case
Commerce
Affirmative

Final

75

usITC
Final

135

Commerce
Terminates

115

USITC
Affirmative
Preliminary

Extended Case
Commerce
Negative
Final

USITC
Terminates

Commerce
Affirmative
Final

45

USITC
Final

Complicated

Commerce
Negative
Final

Case

Commerce
Affirmative
Preliminary

Extended Case
Commerce
Affirmative

Final

45

usSITC
Final

Extended Case
Commerce
Negative
Final

Commerce
Affirmative
Final

75

USITC
Final

Commerce
Negative
Final

Complicated
Case

Commerce
Negative
Preliminary

135

Extended Case
Commerce
Affirmative

Final

75

USITC
Final

135

Extended Case
Commerce
Negative

Final

USITC
Final

Total
Days

280

340

310

370

330

390

360

420



‘Statutory Timetable for
Countervailing Duty
Investigations (in days)

Total
days
Commerce 45
75 Affirmative usITC 205
Commerce Final Final
Affirmative
Prelimina
Commerce
Negative
Final
Commerce 75
Affirmative USITC 235
Commerce Final Final
Commerce Negative :
Terminates Preliminary
Commerce
40 75 Negative
USITC Final
Petition Affirmative
Preliminary | Commerce 45
Complicated 75 Affirmative usITC 270
Case Final Final
USITC (/ifofmmerce
: irmative
Terminates Preliminary 75 Commerce
, Negative
Final
Complicated Cmmetee |75 Jusitc 300
Case Final Final
Commerce
Negative
Preliminary Commerce
Negative
Final

Unfair Import Practice
Investigations

The Commission, under section 337
of the Tariff Act of 1930 (19 U.S.C.
1337), applies U.S. statutory and com-
mon law of unfair competition to the im-
portation of articles into the United
States and in their sale. All violations of
section 337 require finding both an un-
fair act in the importation into or sale in
the United States of an article and a
resulting actual, or tendency toward,
substantial injury. If the Commission

9

finds a violation of section 337, it can
issue orders excluding the offending ar-
ticles from entry into the United States,
as well as cease and desist orders, after
considering the issuance of such orders
in view of public-interest considerations.

Commission orders go into effect 60
days from issuance unless disapproved
by the President. Appeals of Commis-
sion orders are heard by the Court of
Appeals for the Federal Circuit. Violators
of Commission section 337 orders are
liable for civil penalties of up to $10,000
a day.



Section 337 investigations require
formal evidentiary hearings held in ac-
cordance with the Administrative Pro-
cedure Act (5 U.S.C. 551 et seq.) before
an administrative law judge (AL]J). Par-
ties to these investigations include com-
plainants, respondents, and the Com-
mission staff representing the public.
Following a hearing, the ALJ issues an
initial determination on the issues of the
investigation that may be reversed by
the full Commission. Every investigation
must be completed within 12 months, or
within 18 months for more complicated
cases. Complainants may seek temporary
relief pending final resolution of a case.

The most common unfair methods of
competition brought before the Commis-
sion are infringements of patent, copy-
right, or trademark; theft of trade
secrets; passing off; or violation of the
antitrust laws.

In fiscal year 1985, the Commission
continued to be at the forefront of legal
and technological issues in section 337
investigations. Producers of high-
technology articles such as aramid fibers,
amorphous metals, and optical wave-
guide fibers; computer-related equipment
such as rotary wheel printers and
doubled-sided floppy disk drives;
medical devices such as artificial kidneys
and apparatus for disintegration of
urinary calculi; capital equipment such
as motor graders and stretch-wrapping
apparatus; and consumer items such as
products with the Gremlins character
depictions and Duracell batteries all
sought protection from alleged infringe-
ment of intellectual property rights at
the International Trade Commission.

During fiscal year 1985, there were
60 active 337 investigations. The Com-
mission entered exclusion orders in 12
investigations and cease and desist
orders in 2 investigations. Settlement
agreements and consent orders were
entered into in 26 investigations. Of
those investigations in which the Com-
mission made final determinations on
the merits, a violation of section 337 was

10

found in 12 investigations, and no viola-
tion, in 7 investigations. The Commis-
sion also entered one temporary exclu-
sion order. At yearend, 15 investigations
remained active. The Commission also
terminated a section 603! preliminary in-
vestigation on hydrogenerators from
Japan. ‘

During the fiscal year, the Commis-
sion made an administrative change
affecting the conduct of section 337
investigations. In recognition of the in-
creasing role of these cases in ensuring
free and fair trade, the Unfair Import In-
vestigation Division, formerly a part of
the Office of Investigations, became a
separate office of the Commission (the
Office of Unfair Import Investigations).

Most notable of the many legal
issues presented to the Commission in
section 337 investigations were those of
protecting registered trademarks and
copyrights from gray marketing and
counterfeiting. Moreover, the due proc-
ess opportunity for a full and fair hear-
ing on the record in section 337 in-
vestigations was approved by several
Federal courts. In fact, one appellate
court refused to relitigate a trademark
issue already decided by the Commis-
sion and dismissed a Federal court
action.

1 Sec. 603(a) of the Trade Act of
1974 provides that, in order to ex-
pedite the performance of its func-
tions under the act, the Commission
may conduct preliminary investiga-
tions, determine the scope and man-
ner of its proceedings, and consolidate
proceedings before it. In recent years,
sec. 603 investigations have been used
by the Commission to determine
whether a sec. 337 investigation of
alleged unfair practices in import
trade should be instituted.
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Part II. Organizational
Activities

Office of Investigations

The Office of Investigations is
responsible for conducting all of the
Commission’s countervailing duty and
antidumping review investigations under
provisions of the Tariff Act of 1930,
escape-clause (sec. 201) and market
disruption (sec. 406)! investigations pur-
suant to the Trade Act of 1974, and in-
vestigations under section 22 of the
Agricultural Adjustment Act to deter-
mine whether imports of agricultural
products are interfering with programs
of the U.S. Department of Agriculture.
The principal operating units in the Of-
fice of Investigations are the four in-
vestigative divisions with a combined
staff of 24 investigators, supported by
the accountants and financial analysts in
the Financial Analysis Division and the
statisticians and statistical assistants in
the Statistical Analysis Division. The in-
vestigators are responsible for coordina-
tion of an investigation—gathering data
and information by various means, in-
cluding survey and secondary-source
research, analyzing the conditions of
competition between domestic and im-
ported goods in the U.S. market as well
as the economic condition of the
domestic industry, and preparing the
staff reports to the Commission. These
reports, together with briefs filed with
the Commission by the parties and
statements made at the public hearings,

' The Commission conducts in-
vestigations to determine whether in-
creased imports of an article produced
in a Communist country are causing
market disruption in the United
States. If the Commission’s deter-
mination is in the affirmative, the
President may take the same action as
in a case involving injury to an in-
dustry, except that the action would
apply only to imports of the article
from the Communist country. (Sec.
406, Trade Act of 1974; 19 U.S.C.
2436.)
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serve as the factual basis for the Com-
mission’s determinations.

The Commission’s statutory investi-
gative workload continued to increase in
fiscal year 1985, and, consequently, the
burden on the Office of Investigations
increased. Staffing of the fourth in-
vestigative division, formed to cope with
the increased workload, was completed
during the year, as was the staffing of
the Financial Analysis Division. Al-
though there were only two import
relief investigations under section 201 of
the Trade Act of 1974, Potassium Per-
manganate (TA-201-54) and Nonrubber
Footwear (TA-201-55), the latter required
a significant commitment of staff
resources. There was an increase in the
number of section 22 investigations (one
involving tobacco and two involving im-
ports of sugar), which the Commission
conducted at the request of the Presi-
dent. The principal reason for the
increased workload in this fiscal year re-
mained the continued growth in the
number of countervailing duty and anti-
dumping investigations under title VII of
the Tariff Act of 1930. The industrial sec-
tor producing carbon steel products was
the major source of filings in this
category, although industries ranging
from swine and pork producers to com-
panies engaged in producing semicon-
ductors filed petitions alleging unfair im-
port competition. The fiscal year was
marked by the successful completion of
the last of the 45 required ‘‘transition’”’
countervailing duty investigations under
section 104 of the Trade Agreements Act
of 1979. All of these investigations were
completed in accordance with, or well in
advance of, the established statutory
deadline.

‘Office of Administrative

Law Judges

Before making a determination under
section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, the
Commission is required to provide an



Conditions Relating to the Importation of Soft-
wood Lumber Into the United States was the
title of the Commission factfinding in-
vestigation conducted at the request of the
United States Trade Representative at the
direction of the President. Witnesses pre-
sented their views directly to the Commission
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in a pubic forum on July 23, 1985. Congres-
sional appearances included that of (1) U.S.
Senator Max Baucus, Democrat from Mon-
tana, and U.S. Representatives (2) Don
Bonker, Democrat from Washington, (3)
James Weaver, Democrat from Oregon, and
(4) Larry Craig, Republican from Idaho.
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opportunity for a hearing in conformity
with the provisions of subchapter II of
chapter 5 of title 5, United States Code
(the Administrative Procedure Act). Ad-
ministrative law judges are appointed
pursuant to 5 U.5.C. § 3105 with the
responsibility for conducting such hear-
ings. Following a hearing, the ad-
ministrative law judge decides a case by
issuing an initial determination that may
be reviewed by the full Commission.
The Office of Administrative Law
Judges is made up of four judges and a
support staff of attorneys, an economist,
and support personnel. Administrative
law judges appointed by the Commis-
sion are selected from attorneys who
have been designated administrative law
judges after the successful completion of
a highly competitive examination ad-
ministered by the Office of Personnel
- Management. These judges are required
by law to give a fair hearing to all par-
ties under the Administrative Procedure
Act and to maintain independence from
the rest of the Commission and the
Commission’s staff in matters relating to
hearing and deciding cases. The judges
in the Office of Administrative Law
Judges came to the Commission after ex-
tensive trial experience in private prac-
tice, in government, and as adminis-
trative law judges in other Federal
Government agencies.

Office of Industries

The Office of Industries, with its
staff of over 90 international trade
analysts, is responsible for providing the
Commission and the public with detailed
technical and economic information on
U.S. industries and merchandise trade.
The Commission requires such informa-
tion in order to meet its heavy statutory
and factfinding investigative caseload
and other technical responsibilities in
such areas as tariff nomenclature, trade
monitoring, review of proposed trade
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legislation, and general assistance to the
Congress and the President in trade mat-
ters. In order to develop and maintain
the required commodity-industry exper-
tise for ready access by the Commission,
the office is organized into six commodi-
ty divisions covering the major indus-
trial sectors—agriculture and forest prod-
ucts, textiles and apparel, energy and
chemicals, minerals and metals, machin-
ery and equipment, and miscellaneous
manufactures. Within these divisions,
the international trade analysts track the
import, export, production, and sale of
more than 15,000 items of world trade.
These specialists’ expertise has been in
growing demand as international trade
becomes an increasingly important com-
ponent of the economy and focus of
national attention. The President,
Congress, and the Commission often
rely heavily upon the expertise of the
analysts to obtain an objective picture of
the impact of international trade (imports
and exports) on U.S. industry and the
factors influencing the competitive posi-
tion of U.S. industry in world trade.

Investigations Under Section 332

During fiscal year 1985, the Office of
Industries conducted 41 investigations
under section 332! of the Tariff Act of
1930, including both one-time factfinding
studies and continuing industry surveys.
A number of these studies explored
areas where there is relatively little
available information or investigative
precedent. Such efforts included Com-
mission studies on the effects of the
Japanese voluntary restraint agreement

! Investigations conducted under
sec. 332 are requested by the Presi-
dent, the House Ways and Means
Committee, the Senate Finance Com-
mittee, or either House of Congress or
are initiated on the Commission’s
own motion.
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At the request of the Subcommittee on
Trade, Committee on Ways and Means, U.S.
House of Representatives, the Commission
instituted the factfinding investigation
Competitive Assessment of the U.S. Ball and
Roller Bearing Industry (1) on April 17, 1985.
Congressional representatives appearing as
witnesses at the public hearing on the investi-
gation on October 3, 1985, included U.S. Rep-
resentatives (2) Barbara Kennelly, Democrat
from Connecticut, and (3) Nancy Johnson, Re-
publican from Connecticut.
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(VRA) for autos, U.S. countertrade, the
natural-resource-pricing practices of
foreign governments, and the interna-
tional competitiveness of U.S. producers
in such areas as petrochemicals, coal,
swine, shrimp, commuter aircraft,
filberts, pork, lumber, and forging
products.

Ten continuing Office of Industry
surveys were conducted under section
332 to aid the Congress or the executive
branch in monitoring both U.S. imports
and domestic production of various
products. Five of these surveys were
conducted at the request of the Presi-
dent, four were conducted at the request
of Congress, and one continuing survey
is being conducted as a result of the
Commission’s own motion. During fiscal
year 1985, the Office of Industries
published surveys covering synthetic
organic chemicals (a Commission series
. extending continuously from 1918),
canned mushrooms, brooms, stainless
steel and alloy tool steel, steel subject to
the United States-EC Arrangement,
heavyweight motorcycles, automobiles,
rum, and nonrubber footwear. In addi-
tion, a new monitoring effort was begun
on competitive conditions in the steel in-
dustry and industry efforts to adjust and
modernize.

At the beginning of fiscal year 1985,
the Office of Industries had 14 factfind-
ing studies underway. During the year,
an additional 17 studies were initiated,
and 21 were completed. At the end of
the fiscal year, the Office of Industries
had 11 section 332 studies underway.
Certain of the major completed studies
are highlighted below.

Conditions of Competition Affecting the
Northeastern U.S. Groundfish and
Scallop Industries in Selected Markets
(332-173)

At the request of the United States
Trade Representative, the Commission
instituted this investigation for the pur-
pose of gathering and presenting infor-
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mation on the competitive and economic
factors affecting the performance and
competitive position of the Northeastern
U.S. groundfish and scallop industries in
selected markets. The study presents (1)
a profile of the Northeastern U.S. and
major foreign groundfish and scallop in-
dustries, (2) a description of the North-
eastern U.S. market in terms of U.S.
consumption and trade, (3) an analysis
of Government involvement in the
Northeastern U.S. and major foreign
groundfish ‘and scallop industries, and
(4) an analysis of competitive conditions
in the Northeastern U.S. market, in-
cluding factors such as price, quality,
availability, transportation, marketing,
exchange rates, government assistance,
and the U.S.-Canadian maritime boun-
dary dispute.

Conditions of Competition Between
Certain Domestic and Imported
Fabricated Structural Steel Products
(332-181)

At the request of the Subcommittee
on Trade, Committee on Ways and
Means, U.S. House of Representatives,
the Commission instituted an investiga-
tion into the conditions of competition
between certain domestic and imported
fabricated structural steel products. The
report assesses the factors affecting the
competitive position of U.S. fabricators,
compares the structural characteristics of
the U.S. industry with those of principal
foreign competitors, and describes U.S.
and foreign Government policies and
regulations affecting the fabricated struc-
tural steel industry.

Emerging Textile-Exporting
Countries, 1984 (332-184)

This study was instituted by the
Commission on its own motion to up-
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date and supplement an earlier report
published by the Commission in 1982.
Recent trends in world trade in textiles
and apparel, especially from 1980 to 1984,
are examined, and a detailed analysis is
made of the status of 14 selected
developing countries. With respect to
each of the countries, the study develops
information on their overall economy,
their textile and apparel industries, trade
patterns, resources, and Government
policies in order to assess their potential
for increasing exports of textiles and
apparel in the world market and in the
U.S. market in particular. Information is
also provided on current conditions in
the U.S. market and recent U.S. actions
to control imports of textiles and apparel
that might affect exports of the emerging
countries.

The Internationalization of the
Automobile Industry and Its Effects on
the U.S. Automobile Industry (332-188)

The Commission, on its own motion,
instituted this investigation, which ex-
amines the concepts of internationaliza-
tion and the principal factors that led to
the internationalization of the world
automobile industry, with particular em-
phasis on the U.S. automobile industry.
It assesses both Government policies and
other factors (such as transportation
costs, labor rates, and resource availabili-
ty) that influence automobile manufac-
turers’ decisions to procure outside the
country of final assembly and to form
joint ventures with foreign firms. In ad-
dition, an interim report was submitted
in February 1985 in response to a re-

. quest by the Subcommittee on Trade,
& Committee on Ways and Means, U.S.

House of Representatives, for informa-

§ tion to assist in decisions regarding an

extension of the automobile VRA with
Japan.

The Multifiber Arrangement,
1980-84 (332-189)

This study, instituted on the Com-

- mission’s own motion, provides informa-

= tion on the history and structure of the

United Automobile Workers’ president Owen
Bieber presented testimony on December 4,
1985, at the Commission’s public hearing in
Detroit, MI, The Internationalization of the
Automobile Industry and Its Effects on the U.S.
Automobile Industry. The factfinding investiga-
tion was initiated by the Commission on its
own motion. In response to a request by the
Subcommittee on Trade, Committee on Ways
and Means, U.S. House of Representatives,
the Commission submitted an interim report
containing information to assist in decisions
regarding an extension of the automobile
voluntary restraint agreement with Japan.
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Multifiber Arrangement (MFA) and on
current issues related to this interna-
tional agreement under which the bulk
of trade in textiles and apparel is con-
trolled. U.S. administration of MFA pro-
grams is described, data are presented
on imports, by sources and U.S. market
segments, and each of the bilateral
agreements under which the United
States controls imports of textiles and
apparel is summarized. The report also
discusses MFA coverage in terms of fiber
and supplying countries, MFA provi-
sions for quota growth and flexibility,
and the extent to which individual quota
categories were filled. In addition, textile
trade restraints of other developed coun-
tries are described.
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Conditions of Competition Between the
U.S. and Major Foreign Filbert
Industries (332-193)

At the request of the Committee on
Finance, U.S. Senate, the Commission
instituted this investigation to gather in-
formation for a report on the competitive
position of imported filberts in the U.S.
market and the conditions of competition
that have affected the U.S. filbert in-
dustry and the filbert industries of the
major foreign suppliers. The study
presents (1) a profile of the structure of
the U.S. filbert industry and of U.S.
markets, (2) a description of the filbert
industries of major foreign suppliers, (3)
the conditions of competition in U.S.
markets, and (4) information on major
foreign markets for U.S. filberts.

World Trade Flows in Major
Agricultural Products (332-194)

At the request of the Committee on
Finance, U.S. Senate, the Commission
instituted this investigation to gather in-
formation for a report on world trade
flows in major agricultural products, and
specifically on U.S. and world trade in
broad commodity areas that include
grains; oilseeds; animal products; fruits,
vegetables, and nuts; and sugar. The in-
vestigation reviews trade patterns in the
five cited major agricultural products, as
well as commodity cycles, wage rates,
exchange rates, transportation costs,
trade barriers, Government targeting
practices, and other factors of competi-
tion affecting overall world agricultural
trade and the U.S. position in that trade.

The Effects of Semifinished Steel
Imports on the U.S. Iron and
Steel Scrap Industry (332-195)

At the request of the Subcommittee
on Trade, Committee on Ways and
Means, U.S. House of Representatives,
the Commission instituted this investiga-
tion to evaluate the effects of semi-
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finished steel imports on the U.S. iron
and steel scrap industry. This study in-
cludes (1) a description of the markets
for U.S. iron and steel scrap, (2) an
analysis of recent trends in imports of
semifinished steel, and (3) an assessment
of the impact of semifinished steel im-
ports on the U.S. scrap market and the
U.S. scrap industry.

Analysis of the International Competi-
tiveness of the U.S. Commercial Ship-
building and Repair Industries (332-197)

At the request of the Subcommittee
on Trade, Committee on Ways and
Means, U.S. House of Representatives,
the Commission instituted an investiga-
tion for the purpose of analyzing the in-
ternational competitiveness of the U.S.
commercial shipbuilding and repair in-
dustries. The study assesses the factors
affecting the competitive position of U.S.
commercial shipbuilders and repairers,
compares structural characteristics of the
U.S. industry and foreign industries, ex-
amines the extent of Government in-
volvement in the industry, and identifies
the steps that have been and may be
taken to counteract disadvantageous
competitive developments. The report
also analyzes Draft Substitute Amend-
ment H.R. 3399, the Maritime Redevel-
opment Bank Bill, and its potential
impact on the U.S. industries and their
international competitiveness.

Conditions of Competition Affecting
the U.S. Gulf and South Atlantic
Shrimp Industry (332-201)

Following a request from the Office
of the United States Trade Represen-
tative (USTR), the Commission instituted
this investigation for the purpose of
gathering and presenting information on
the competitive, technological, and
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Commissioners and staff obtained firsthand
views of the domestic shrimp industry on
March 21 and 22, 1985. Several hundred peo-
ple, including scores of shrimpers/boat
owners and processors, participated at the
Commission’s public hearing held in New
Orleans. The factfinding investigation was in-
itiated at the request of the United States
Trade Representative. The investigation
gathered information and data on the com-
petitive, technological, and economic factors
affecting the performance and competitive
position of the U.S. Gulf and South Atlantic
shrimp industry.
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economic factors affecting the perfor-
mance and competitive position of the
U.S. Gulf and South Atlantic shrimp in-
dustry. The study presents (1) a profile
of the U.S. Gulf and South Atlantic and
major foreign shrimp industries, in-
cluding the aquaculture (fish-farming)
sector; (2) a description of the U.S.
market in terms of U.S. consumption
and trade, prices, and supply and de-
mand factors; (3) an analysis of Govern-
ment involvement in the U.S. Gulf and
South Atlantic and major foreign shrimp
industries; and (4) an analysis of com-
petitive conditions in the U.S. market,
including factors such as price, quality,
availability, transportation, marketing,
Government assistance, and exchange
rates.

Potential Effects of Foreign
Governments’ Policies of

Pricing Natural Resources
(332-202)

At the request of the Subcommittee
on Trade, Committee on Ways and
Means, U.S. House of Representatives,
the Commission instituted this investiga-
tion to gather information on the poten-
tial effects of foreign governments’
policies of pricing natural resource prod-
ucts to their domestic industrial users at
prices substantially below the export sell-
ing price or other market value of the
products. The study describes certain
foreign governments’ pricing policies,
estimates the foreign production cost
savings conferred by such pricing
policies, analyzes the competitive advan-
tage of such production cost savings
vis-a-vis costs of U.S. producers; and
analyzes the effect of such foreign
resource-pricing policies on the resource
allocation within the foreign country.
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Possible Effects of the Recommendations
Concerning the Proposed Tariff
Reclassification of Catalytic Naphtha and
Other Motor Fuel Blending Stocks
(332-203)

Following requests from the Subcom-
mittee on Trade, Committee on Ways
and Means, U.S. House of Representa-
tives, and the Committee on Finance,
U.S. Senate, the Commission instituted
an investigation to gather information on
the tariff classification and treatment of
those products potentially affected by a
reclassification of catalytic naphtha and
other motor fuel blending stocks. The
study addresses (1) the current tariff
treatment of naphthas, motor fuel, and
motor fuel blending stocks; (2) the
desirability of modifying the current tariff
classification treatment consistent with
sound principles of product nomencla-
ture; (3) the possible improvements to
the tariff nomenclature for ethyl and
methyl alcohol used as motor fuel blend-
ing stocks; and (4) the effects that such
changes would most likely have on U.S.
industries and competitive conditions
between U.S. and foreign firms in the
affected segments of the petrochemical
and petroleum industries. '

Trade Monitoring

During fiscal year 1985, the Office of
Industries continued the quarterly report
series entitled ““U.S. Trade Shifts in
Selected Commodity Areas.”” The quar-
terly report is a product of the office’s
normal trade-monitoring activities and
provides brief analyses of significant
foreign-trade shifts in major industrial
sectors as well as trade statistics for ap-
proximately 650 commodity groups
within those major sectors. Four reports
were issued in the series, covering the
second and third quarters of 1984, 1984
in its entirety, and the first quarter of
1985. |
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Summaries of Trade and Tariff
Information

The summaries provide the Con-
gress, Government agencies, the public,
and business institutions with informa-
tion on the commodities listed in the
Tariff Schedules of the United States.
The current summary series, which is
now complete, provides comprehensive
coverage of product uses, manufacturing
processes, and commercial practices and
includes analyses of the numerous fac-
tors affecting U.S. and world trade in
each commodity area. The completed
summary series will be kept current
through periodic supplements to each of
the roughly 250 individual reports in this
series. The Commission completed 11
new summaries and 39 updates of
previously published summaries in fiscal
year 1985.

Office of Economics

The Office of Economics (OF) sup-
ports the Commission in its role of
determining the impact of imports on
U.S. industries and providing expert ad-
vice to the Congress and the President
on international trade issues. The office’s
economists employ economic principles
and statistical methods to develop in-
depth analyses of markets, industries,
trade flows, and commercial policies.
The office has three divisions, each with
distinct functional responsibilities. The
[nvestigation Support Division works
closely with the Commission’s Office of
Investigations on statutory investigations
to determine the economic effects of im-
ports of competing goods on U.S. pro-
ducers. The Trade Reports Division
houses country and international
organization experts who produce recur-
ring trade reports and monitor trade and
industrial policies of major U.S. trading
partners. The Research Division pro-
duces analyses of international trade
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issues of concern to the Congress or the
President. The office added eight new
economists to its staff in 1985 to meet
strong demand for analytical support by
the Commission and trade policymakers
in the Congress and the executive
branch.

Investigation Support
Division

The level of activity in the Investiga-
tion Support Division remained high
throughout fiscal year 1985, as firms con-
tinued to file large numbers of petitions
for import relief. Besides working on all
of the Commission’s dumping and
countervailing duty investigations, econ-
omists in the division played a major
role in section 201 industry investiga-
tions and section 22 cases involving
agricultural products. Division econo-
mists spent much of their time examin-
ing industry market structures and chan-
nels of distribution, analyzing and
describing price trends developed from
questionnaire responses and other
sources, and examining lost sales and
lost revenue allegations through tele-
phone surveys.

In several investigations, the staff
faced serious analytical challenges in
comparing domestic and import prices.
These comparisons are often critical to
the Commission in making injury deter-
minations. Difficulties in making mean-
ingful price comparisons were frequently
the result of high inland freight charges,
complex distribution networks, or quality
differences between domestic and
foreign products. Extra efforts were re-
quired from division economists to
resolve these types of price comparison
problems in the investigations relating to
rock salt, brazing rod, neoprene lami-
nate, groundfish, frozen concentrated
orange juice, and lime oil during fiscal
year 1985.
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The results of econometric studies
were increasingly employed in investiga-
tions during the 1985 fiscal year. In
other cases, economic modeling was
used to shed light on particular issues in
the investigation. In the frozen concen-
trated orange juice case, division staff
developed a five-equation econometric
model to assist the Commission in
measuring the effects on U.S. imports,
domestic prices, shipments, and reve-
nues of removing a Brazilian tax on
orange juice concentrate. In the live
swine investigation, economists applied
the results of econometric studies of the
demand for pork to estimate the revenue
losses to U.S. farmers arising from in-
creased imports of Canadian swine and
pork products. Similar methods were
used in a section 22 investigation to
quantify the likely effects of imports of
articles containing sugar on the domestic
price of sugar. In the footwear investiga-
tion, economists made use of an
economic model to estimate the likely
impact of various quota levels on prices,
shipments, and employment in the U.S.
footwear industry and to assist the Com-
mission in devising an import remedy.
This model subsequently became the
basis for analyses of the footwear case
performed by other agencies and private
research organizations.

Besides performing estimates of their
own, division economists were often
called upon to help evaluate econometric
results provided by petitioners and
respondents in support of their cases.
Extensive reviews of econometric studies
were performed by staff economists in
the footwear, live swine, and groundfish
investigations.

Division economists also provided
assistance to other Government agen-
cies. For example, after the injury find-
ing in the 201 footwear investigation and
the Commission recommendation of
quotas, staff members assisted the Office
of Trade Agreements in explaining the
Commission’s recommendations to ex-
ecutive branch agencies.
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Trade Monitoring and
Reporting

The Trade Reports Division monitors
foreign economic and policy develop-
ments that are likely to have an impor-
tant effect on U.S. economic interests.
Country economists monitor develop-
ments in the major U.S. trading
partners, and experts on multilateral
trade agreements maintain current
knowledge of discussions in those
forums and their likely impact on U.S.
commerce.

The trade and industrial policies of
foreign countries were a growing source
of concern to the Nation’s policymakers
in fiscal year 1985, and the division’s ex-
pertise helped the Commission provide
accurate, up-to-date information on
those topics to the Congress and the
executive branch. Division economists
participated in a record number of
factfinding studies in the year while
fulfulling several major requests for
technical support and responding to
more than 280 other information re-
quests from the Congress, the public,
and other Government agencies.

Division economists worked on a
wide range of trade issues in 1985. They
drafted major portions of Commission
studies analyzing the industrial targeting
practices of the newly industrializing
countries and Canada, the agricultural
support programs of key producing
countries, foreign shipbuilding policies, a
proposed free-trade arrangement with
Canada, the effects of barter and
countertrade transactions on U.S. in-
dustries, and U.S.-Japanese competition
in cargo transportation services. They
also assisted other offices in studies of
the implications of China’s new
economic development strategies and the
natural-resource-pricing policies of the



Soviet Union. A study on the effective-
ness of the dispute-settlement mecha-
nisms of the General Agreement on
Tariffs and Trade and the Tokyo Round
codes will be completed in December
1985. Division staff also supported the
preparations for a new round of
multilateral trade negotiations by the in-
teragency Trade Policy Staff Committee,
which helps the President formulate
trade policy. Several members of Con-
gress requested special trade reports, in-
cluding one on changes in Japan’s trade
patterns since the conclusion of the
Tokyo Round.

As part of its international monitor-
ing program, the Trade Reports Division
produces two of the Commission’s recur-
ring reports on trade and trade agree-
ments activities. The Commission’s 36th
annual report entitled Operation of the
Trade Agreements Program,! released in
July 1985, highlights major developments
in U.S. trade policy in 1984. It includes a
description of the Trade and Tariff Act
of 1984, detailed background on the
President’s 1984 decision to impose
restrictions on imported steel products,
and a summary of the main provisions
of the first U.S. bilateral free-trade agree-
ment, the United States-Israel free-trade
arrangement. Trade relations with seven
major trading partners—the European
Community, Canada, Japan, Mexico,
Taiwan, the Republic of Korea, and |
Brazil—are covered in detail. The report
also includes a comprehensive review of
actions taken by the United States under
current trade law and discusses develop-
ments in the General Agreement on
Tariffs and Trade and other multilateral
forums. More than 2,000 copies of the
report were distributed on request to
U.S. and foreign government officials,
academics, libraries, trade associations,
and U.S. embassies.

! Oyperation of the Trade Agreements
Program is prepared in conformity
with sec. 163(b) of the Trade Act of
1974.
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Division staff also produce the Com-
mission’s quarterly reports on trade be-
tween the United States and the non-
market economy countries (NME’s) of
China, the Soviet Union, and Eastern
Europe. These reports provide up-to-
date data on U.S. trade with NME’s,
along with analyses of significant
developments in commercial and trade
policy. Fiscal year 1985 was the fourth
year of operation of the Commission’s
East-West Trade Statistics Monitoring
System, which allows the Commission to
analyze imports of manufactured goods
from NME’s in relation to U.S. produc-
tion and employment. The December
1984 report examines the competitive
situation of U.S. industries identified by
the monitoring system on the basis of
import trends. A detailed country-by-
country account of trade and economic
developments in 1984 is contained in the
April 1985 report; an analysis of recent
trends in Chinese-Soviet trade is in-
cluded in the June 1985 report; and the
September 1985 report presents the
results of the latest monitoring scan of
U.S.-manufactured imports from NME’s.

The monthly International Economic
Review, a staff publication, provides the
Commission, the Congress, and others
in the trade policy community with cur-
rent international economic statistics and
background on recent trade or policy
developments. In fiscal year 1985, more
than 500 copies were distributed each
month.

Economic Research Division

The Economic Research Division pro-
vides technical analyses of international
economic issues of interest to the Com-
mission and to policymakers in the Con-
gress and the executive branch. Most of
the analyses are conducted under the
Commission’s section 332 program,
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which is jointly managed by the OE and
the Office of Industries. Economic Re-
search Division economists also regularly
assist in import-injury investigations
when the caseload of petitions is par-
ticularly heavy or when some aspect of
an investigation requires expertise that
an economist in the Economic Research
Division can supply.

The Economic Research Division
completed work on several important
section 332 investigations in fiscal year
1985. The first was the third and final of
a series of reports, Foreign Industrial
Targeting and Its Effects on U.S. Industries
(332-162). The report covers targeting
programs used by Brazil, Canada, Korea,
Mexico, and Taiwan to foster the
development of particular industries. To
gather information for this report, Com-
mission staff visited government officials
in all of these countries. The report was
initiated in June 1984 on request by the
House Committee on Ways and Means
and was completed in January 1985. The
first two reports of this investigation
cover targeting by Japan and members of
the European Community.

The second major investigation com-
pleted by the division was China’s
Economic Development Strategies and Their
Effects on U.S.-China Trade (332-168). This
report examines China’s current 5-year
plan and discusses recent changes in
China’'s development strategies. The in-
vestigation was initiated in August 1983
and released to the public in February
1985. The third major investigation com-
pleted was Conditions of Competition in
Air and Surface Cargo Transportation Serv-
ices Between Japan and the United States
(332-205). This study examines the fac-
tors that determine competitiveness of
U.S. and Japanese air and surface cargo
carriers. The report was initiated in
January 1984 at the request of the Presi-
dent and completed in July 1985. The
USIR has determined that the informa-
tion in the report should be held
confidential.
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Two other investigations are being
conducted in the Economic Research
Division that are scheduled for comple-
tion in fiscal year 1986. The first of these
is U.S. Trade-Related Employment
(332-217). This study will provide esti-
mates of the labor content of U.S. im-
ports and exports from 1978 through
1984. The report, which is scheduled for
release in March 1986, updates the esti-
mates from the previous Commission
report of the same title. The earlier
report on investigation No. 332-154 pro-
vides estimates of trade-related employ-
ment for the years 1978 through 1982
and was released to the public in Oc-
tober 1983. The second study underway
in fiscal year 1985 is The Effects of U.S.
Steel Import Restraints on Exports of
Selected Steel-Consuming Industries
(332-214). The study examines the effects
of the President’s steel import restraint
program on the competitiveness of U.S.
exporters that use steel products as in-
puts to their own production. The study
was requested by the Committee on
Finance, U.S. Senate, in May 1985 and
is scheduled for completion in December
1985.

The Economic Research Division also
participated in two other important re-
search projects managed by the OE. One
is the staff research study Calculating the
Consumer and Net Welfare Costs of Import
Relief. This study was undertaken in
response to a request from the USTR
that the Commission provide estimates
of the consumer costs of import relief
recommended by the Commission in af-
firmative section 201 investigations. The
study was released to the public in
August 1985. The methodology in the
study was used recently to estimate the
consumer cost of section 201 relief for
the footwear industry, and the estimates
were forwarded to the President for his
review of the case. The division also par-
ticipated in a study of the effects of a
surcharge on U.S. imports from Japan.
The study was undertaken as part of a
bill report requested by Congress.



In addition to conducting studies
managed by the Office of Economics,
Economic Research Division economists
made contributions to several studies
managed by the Office of Industries. The
most important of these were studies on
world trade flows in major agricultural
products (332-194), a United States-
Canada free-trade area (332-196), the
review of the U.S. Generalized System
of Preferences (332-187), and an assess-
ment of the competitive positions of
pork producers in the United States and
the European Community (332-213).

As a result of the large number of
petitions filed before the Commission in
fiscal year 1985, the Economic Research
Division was again asked to devote
substantial resources to unfair practice
and import-injury investigations. The
division provided economic analyses for
a number of these investigations, in-
cluding the section 201 investigation on
footwear, the section 22 investigation on
articles containing sugar, and the 701
(countervailing duty) investigation on
live swine and pork products from
Canada.

Office of Executive and
International Liaison

The Office of Executive and Interna-
tional Liaison is responsible for relations
between the Commission and the USTR
and other executive branch offices that
have trade agreements responsibilities. It
also handles Commission contacts with
U.S. embassies abroad and with foreign
governments. The director of the office
serves as the Commission representative
on the interagency Trade Policy Staff
Committee (TPSC), which is chaired by
the United States Trade Representative,
and provides technical information and
technical advice required in the Commit-
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tee’s work. The office plans and
monitors staff work connected with the
Commission’s activities in the trade
agreements programs and coordinates
the participation of staff from other
Commission offices in the activities of
the numerous TPSC subcommittees of
direct interest to Commission functions.

The office has played a key role in
the U.S. preparation for the forthcoming
GATT negotiations associated with adop-
tion of the Harmonized System tariff
nomenclature and developed the U.S.
proposal for a common computerized
data base for these negotiations, which
has been adopted by the GATT Tariff
Concessions Committee. The preparation
of U.S. input for the data base and other
documents for the negotiations was a
major activity of the office during the
year.

A second major activity of the office
was the technical assistance to the USTR
in the negotiations with Israel for the
establishment of a United States-Israel
Free Trade Area and the preparation of
the President’s proclamation that im-
plemented the agreement on September
1, 1985.

Office of Tariff Affairs and
Trade Agreements

The Commission plays a significant
role in the U.S. Government’s efforts to
monitor world trade, to reduce tariff and
nontariff barriers to the international
movement of goods and services, and to
represent the interests of domestic in-
dustries. Assisting the Commission in
meeting its responsibilities in these areas
are the attorneys, nomenclature analysts,
economists, and other staff members of
the Office of Tariff Affairs and Trade

- Agreements.

The most significant area of activity
for the office during fiscal year 1985 re-

" mained its work on the potential conver-

sion of the U.S. customs tariff into the
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nomenclature format of the Harmonized
Commodity Description and Coding
System, known as the Harmonized
System. The Harmonized System, a
product of several years’ work by many
countries under the auspices of the
Customs Cooperation Council in
Brussels, is an international classification
system and statistical enumeration for
merchandise in international trade.
When widely adopted, the new
nomenclature will facilitate trade by pro-
viding common descriptions for all ar-
ticles in international commerce.!

Office staff members continued to
participate in the work and meetings of
the Harmonized System Committee and
related bodies, although an international
convention to implement the new
nomenclature has been opened for
signature. Staff members are providing
assistance to other Government agen-
cies, including technical aid in the
Bureau of the Census conversion of the
U.S. export schedule and the Standard
Industrial Classification system. In addi-
tion, the staff is assisting in the negotia-
tions in Geneva under article XXVIII of
the General Agreement on Tariffs and
Trade to accommodate the necessary
changes in rates of duty that would
result from adoption of the Harmonized
System. One important aspect of this
work is the maintenance and updating
of the trade data base and various files
along with the Tariff Schedules of the
United States (Annotated) (TSUSA)-
Harmonized System cross-reference
trade concordance. Finally, staff
members have begun to draft legislation,

1In June 1983, the Commission
submitted its report to the President
in investigation No. 332-131, including
a draft of the Tariff Schedules of the
United States converted to the format
of the Harmonized System and cross-
references therefor. In September
1984, the TPSC published an updated
version of the draft converted
schedule.
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expected to be submitted to the Con-
gress by the administration in 1987, that
would replace the current Tariff Sched-
ules of the United Sta.es with a new
schedule based on the Harmonized
System nomenclature. Other Govern-
ment agencies and interested parties out-
side the Government will be consulted
during the preparation of a draft bill. It
is currently projected that the Harmo-
nized System will be implemented inter-
nationally as of January 1, 1988.

At the same time, however, the
TSUS continues to be important in ascer-
taining the U.S. role in international
trade. Not only do the tariff schedules
indicate the duty rates and any preferen-
tial treatment to be applied to every arti-
cle imported into the United States, but
they are also used for the collection of
statistics on U.S. imports. This statistical
function is of increasing significance in
light of continuing duty reductions and
growing attention to the U.S. position in
world trade.

The office annually prepares the
Commission’s publication of the TSUSA
and the periodic supplements that up-
date its provisions. The TSUSA contains
approximately 7,500 legal classifications
arranged in a hierarchical structure and
describing every article in international
trade. Each such classification is given a
five-digit number for duty collection pur-

poses to identify the product or products

therein. For statistical purposes, many
legal provisions are divided into
subclassifications having additional two-
digit identifying numbers, so that import
statistics can be gathered about specific
classes of articles. There are now about
15,000 such annotations.?

2 There are potentially about 47,000
statistical annotations in the TSUSA,
of which about 43,000 are in schedule
3, covering textiles and apparel. Of
the 43,000, trade is reported in only
about 5,000 items; the Bureau of the
Census reports trade in multiples of
10 (decades) for cotton yarn and cot-
ton fabrics, covering about 40,000
statistical annotations.
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The annotations are established,
modified, or eliminated by the interagen-
cy group known as the Committee for
Statistical Annotation of Tariff Sched-
ules, chaired by this office. Other
members of the Committee are repre-
sentatives of the Department of Com-
merce’s Bureau of the Census and the
Department of the Treasury’s Customs
Service. The Committee reviews peti-
tions from firms, business and industry
groups, and Government agencies
regarding annotations in both the
TSUSA and the Statistical Classification
of Domestic and Foreign Commodities
Exported From the United States
(schedule B). During fiscal year 1985,
the Committee considered 59 requests
for statistical annotations in the TSUSA
and 18 requests for modifications in
schedule B, designed to improve the
comparability of U.S. import and export
data and for other purposes. As a result
of these requests, the Committee created
54 new schedule B items; the Committee
adopted in full 22 requests for provisions
in the TSUSA, adopted 1 such request
in part, and adopted 22 requests with
modifications, while rejecting 10 and
holding 4 in abeyance.

In addition to two smaller sup-
plements to the TSUSA reflecting
modifications from statutes, Presidential
proclamations, and other actions, the
staff prepared a supplement that re-
placed the basic 1985 edition of the
TSUSA. This publication was a result of
the implementation of the free-trade
agreement between the United States
and [srael and included changes needed
to accommodate existing preferential
programs in light of the added duty
rates for [sraeli products. Staff members
were also significantly involved in the
drafting of the Presidential proclamation
implementing the agreement and in the
updating of the U.S. trade data base
resulting therefrom. Staff members pro-
vided trade data assistance to the U.S.
negotiators.
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Another important area of staff in-
volvement is in regard to the administra-
tion of the U.S. Generalized System of
Preferences (GSP). The GSP is a pro-
gram maintained by several developed
countries to provide unilateral tariff
preferences to products imported from
developing countries. The U.S. GSP
program was authorized by the Trade
Act of 1974 and was extended until 1993
by the Trade and Tariff Act of 1984. Each
year the Commission has provided con-
siderable technical assistance in the
operation of the GSP. In particular, this
work is associated with (1) the annual
TPSC review of the GSP, during which
petitions are received from importers,
U.S. producers, and foreign governments
seeking changes in the list of products
eligible for GSP duty-free treatment; (2)
the annual statistical analysis needed to
determine which countries may either
lose or regain eligibility for GSP treat-
ment for specific products under the
“competitive-need” formula; (3) the
preparation of Presidential Executive
orders to modify the GSP; and (4) the
preparation of an annual booklet con-
taining a complete and current listing of
eligible articles and beneficiary countries.

For each of the products involved in
the petitions accepted for review, the
Commission is requested to conduct for-
mal investigations under section 503(a)
of the Trade Act of 1974 and section 332
of the Tariff Act of 1930 to advise the
President of the probable economic effect
on U.S. industries and on consumers of
the GSP modifications requested by the
petitioners. In addition to submitting
such advice during fiscal year 1985, the
Commission is involved in a detailed
study to serve as the basis of TPSC
review of the GSP in light of the amend-
ments to the program made by the
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Trade and Tariff Act of 1984. Finally, for
the implementation of the Harmonized
System, office staff are participating in
the transition of the current GSP pro-
gram as reflected in the TSUS to the
provisions to be contained in the con-
verted tariff schedule.

Office staff members participate in
other Commission work in the trade
agreements program, as well as with the
TPSC. Such involvement includes ac-
tivities related to the GATT, its various
framework agreements (such as the
Standards Code), and international com-
modity agreements. A member of the of-
fice staff serves as technical advisor for
the U.S. Government in its participation
in the Agreement on Trade in Civil Air-
craft, and other staff members provide
trade data used to assist U.S. participa-
tion in many trade agreements. A final
area of activity has been the mainte-
nance of the Looseleaf Consolidated U.S.
Schedule of Concessions under the
GATT, known as Schedule XX, and the
completion of a current version of the
Special and Administrative Provisions of the
Tariff Act of 1930, a compilation of trade
laws last updated in 1970.

Office of Data Systems

The Commission maintains a com-
prehensive data collection, manipulation,
and storage capability to support its
multifaceted trade mission activities. The
Office of Data Systems, through the
functions performed by its library, data
processing, and statistical staff, carries
out the Commission’s responsibility in
this area. To accomplish the Data
Systems mission and functions, and
because of the growing need for hands-
on access to computer resources by
Commission staff, the office was
reorganized into four divisions during
fiscal year 1985. These are the Computer
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Services Division, Applications Develop-
ment Division, Statistical Services Divi-
sion, and the Library Division.

The Computer Services Division
oversees access and usage of the agen-
cy’s two primary computers, the Na-

‘tional Institute of Health (NIH) Com-

puter System 370 and the in-house IBM
4331, located in the Bicentennial
Building, across from the ITC Building,
as well as all of the related equipment
and software required by agency users.

The Applications Development Divi-
sion provides analysis and programming
support for all new agency applications
requiring mainframe computer process-
ing and provides technical support for
maintenance of existing production
systems residing on either the NIH or
in-house computers. The Computer
Services and Applications Development
Divisions provide technical assistance to
staff members desiring to become profi-
cient in data processing, and both divi-
sions share responsibilities for develop-
ing and maintaining a number of com-
puterized information systems used in
generating a variety of trade statistics
and administrative reports, including
finance and accounting, activity report-
ing, personnel management, and docket
processing to name a few.

The Statistical Services Division
(SSD) staff is able to stay abreast of the
constant need for reliable trade statistics
by using computers and improved
methods, including microfiche readers.
SSD statisticians provide input to many
of the Commission’s prehearing reports
(approximately 120 in 1985) and respond
to daily inquiries for data from trade
statistics users both in and out of
Government.

SSD staff members also prepare
several statistical bulletins containing an-
nual import/export data and contribute
significantly to the preparation of other
Commission publications, including the
Operation of the Trade Agreements Program
and quarterly East-West Trade
Reports, published by the Office of
Economics.



The Main Library completes the
trade statistics information triangle by
maintaining published hard-copy data
for many of the computerized sources
generated and used throughout the
Commission. Much of this hard-copy
backup is in the form of published Cen-
sus statistics on imports and exports, in-
cluding an extensive micrographics col-
lection. Also included among the Main
Library’s information resource capability
are several computer terminals used for
acquiring and cataloging publications
and accessing the commercial data bases
currently used in Commission work,
which together with the other sources
available with the Office of Data Systems
provide a complete cross-reference to
most of the traditional trade statistics
used in the Federal Government. The
Main Library makes extensive use of the
nationwide On-Line Computer Library
Center library network to support its ac-
quisition, cataloging, and interlibrary
loan activities.

Office of Congressional Liaison

The Office of Congressional Liaison
is responsible for coordinating Commis-
sion services to Congress and informing
the Commission of relevant congres-
sional action.

Fiscal year 1985 covered both the
end of the 98th Congress and the begin-
ning of the 99th Congress. In the 98th
Congress, a major trade bill, the Trade
and Tariff Act of 1984, was enacted.
Many of the act’s provisions directly af-
fect the Commission’s activities. Also in
1984, Congress approved legislation that
will transfer the ITC Building to the
Smithsonian Institution once a new loca-
tion for the Commission has been found.

International trade issues have
received a high priority in the 99th
Congress. Consequently, there was a
significant demand for the Commission’s
services in fiscal year 1985.
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A major activity of the office was
responding to congressional inquiries.
Over 1,100 calls and nearly 500 letters
were received by the office during the
year. Congressional interest in the Com-
mission was also reflected in the 37 ap-
pearances by Members of Congress at
Commission hearings. The office also
provided periodic reports to the Com-
mission on the status of trade legislation
and on congressional hearings and
meetings on trade issues.

In addition to the activities of the
Office of Congressional Liaison, the
Commission provided a wide range of
services to the Congress. Commissioners
testified at a total of 10 hearings before 8
different committees during the year.
The Commission also completed 130
reports on bills introduced in the House
and Senate. These reports, which are
prepared for the House Ways and
Means and Senate Finance Committees,
provide statistical and legal background
information for use in committee
meetings.

Two events were planned by the of-
fice to strengthen the Commission’s rela-
tionship with Congress. On January 31,
1985, the Chairwoman and certain senior
staff provided a briefing for Capitol Hill
staff on the Commission’s responsibil-
ities and the types of services it can pro-
vide to Congress. Over 100 congressional
staff attended the briefing. On May 1,
1985, the Commissioners had a breakfast
meeting at the Commission with four
members of the Subcommittee on Trade,
Committee on Ways and Means, U.S.
House of Representatives. The meeting,
which was also attended by committee
staff and Commission senior staff, pro-
vided an opportunity for an informal ex-
change of views on current trade issues.
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Chairwoman Paula Stern and Commission
executive staff briefed more than 100 congres-
sional staff on January 31, 1985. The Capitol
Hill briefing was conducted by the Commis-
sion to inform congressional staff about the
agency’s responsibilities and types of services
provided to the Congress.




Office of the Secretary

In many instances the Office of the
Secretary is the first point of contact
with the Commission. Such contact can
be in connection with one or more of the
various roles played by the office. The
Secretary to the Commission is responsi-
ble for compiling and maintaining the
Commission’s official records. The Office
of the Secretary functions as the point of
entry where petitions, briefs, and other
legal documents are received from par-
ties, embassies, the public, and other
Government agencies; it also serves as
the point of issuance for the Commis-
sion’s notices, reports, and orders
relating to the conduct of investigations.
The Secretary’s position is the only one
in the agency besides those of the six
Commissioners established by law.

The Secretary also schedules and
participates in all Commission meetings
and hearings. The office staff must plan
and coordinate work relating to tran-
scripts or tape recordings of the pro-
ceedings, witness lists, the timing of
testimony, and the display of exhibits
before the Commission. When the Com-
mission travels to another location for a
hearing, the staff makes the arrange-
ments. The Commission held 55
meetings and 41 days of hearings in
fiscal year 1985.

An additional function of the Office
of the Secretary is, as an outgrowth of
its recordkeeping responsibility, to serve
as the depository for historical informa-
tion relating to the Commission’s
development as an institution since its
inception in 1916.

The Secretary is responsible for ad-
ministering requests for confidential
treatment of proprietary information, re-
quests for information issued under pro-
tective orders, and requests for informa-
tion under the Freedom of Information
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Act. The Commission’s Rules of Practice
and Procedure (19 CFR 201.6) describe
confidential business information and
the Commission’s rationale for maintain-
ing the confidentiality of proprietary
business information. Examples of infor-
mation the Commission considers to be
eligible for confidential business treat-
ment are data relating to secrets, sales,
shipments, profit, or employment of in-
dividual firms. The rationale for main-
taining the confidentiality of such data is
twofold. Disclosure would have the ef-
fect of either (1) impairing the Commis-
sion’s ability to obtain information
necessary to perform its statutory func-
tions or (2) causing substantial harm to
the competitive position of the entity
from which such information was ob-
tained. The Secretary considered 373
such requests during fiscal year 1985,
representing a 28-percent decrease over
the number in fiscal year 1984.

Under the Commission’s rules (19
CFR 207.7), a counsel for parties
involved in legal actions at the Commis-
sion may apply for the release of con-
fidential business information under a
protective order. This practice is ad-
ministered by the Secretary. The
Secretary considered 82 such requests
during fiscal year 1985, 1 percent fewer
than in fiscal year 1984. A total of 75 re-
quests were granted.

The Commission’s rules (19 CFR
201.17-201.21) provide for requests for
information under the Freedom of Infor-
mation Act (5 U.S5.C. 552). Essentially,
the act supports the public’s right of ac-
cess to Government records with explicit
exceptions. At the Commission, most
denials of access to information involve
information that is business confidential,
involve personnel matters, or relate to
predetermination staff advice to the
Commission. Under the Commission’s
rules, the determination as to each re-
quest is made by the Secretary. The
Secretary considered 189 requests during
fiscal year 1985, 2 percent fewer than in
fiscal year 1984. Of the requests re-
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ceived, 165 were granted entirely or in
part and denied in part; the remainder
either were denied or the agency had no
records of the type requested.

The Commission’s Public and Con-
sumer Affairs Office is a branch of the
Office of the Secretary. The Public and
Consumer Affairs Office has the dual
role of administering the Commission’s
media relations program and aiding
teachers, students, historians, foreign
visitors, consumers, and other interested
members of the public in understanding
Commission activities. In this respect,
the Public Affairs staff publishes press
releases, brochures, media advisories,
and other materials; briefs members of
the press; and answers inquiries from
the public. The Commission’s need for a
professional public affairs component
has risen with the growing media and
public attention to trade issues during
the past several years.

Office of Administration

During fiscal year 1985, the Office of
Administration concentrated its efforts
on the following activities: (1) Recruiting
and hiring additional permanent staff to
reach the Commission’s authorized. per-
sonnel ceiling of 482; (2) improving the
Commission’s procedures for handling
and safeguarding sensitive information;
(3) mounting a records management pro-
gram; and (4) preparing for the physical
relocation of the Commission while tak-
ing steps to improve the working condi-
tions at the Commission’s current head-
quarters building.

Late in fiscal year 1984, Congress ap-
proved appropriations for a 10-percent
increase in the Commission’s permanent
staff. At the close of fiscal year 1984,
there were 436 permanent staff on
board; 1 year later, the Commission’s
staffing level was 473, or 9 under the
authorized level of 482. Seven of the
nine vacancies were in Commissioner’s
offices, leaving only two vacancies in
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staff organizations. In order to achieve
this net increase in permanent employ-
ment, the Commission hired 89 new
employees, but it experienced the loss of
52 employees during fiscal year 1985.
Over one-half of the people who left the
Commission transferred to either another
Federal agency or to the private sector.
Others retired or left for personal
reasons.

Extensive employee development ac-
tivities were conducted during the re-
porting period in support of a variety of
Commission programs. Twenty-one
employees participated in the Commis-
sion’s Executive and Managerial Devel-
opment Program, which provides special
developmental opportunities to potential
executives and managers. Continuing
education and developmental activities
were provided to Senior Executive Serv-
ice members and to managerial staff
covered by the Performance Manage-
ment Recognition System (formerly the
Merit Pay System). Additionally, a major
effort was mounted to train support and
professional staff in the use of word-
processing equipment. Participating in
this on-site training program were 260
employees, 70 percent of whom were
professional staff, and 30 percent, sup-
port personnel.

In recognition of high-quality per-
formance by staff members, 183 incen-
tive awards were granted in fiscal year
1985, including 72 Quality Step In-
creases, 44 Special Achievement Awards,
and 67 Sustained Superior Performance
Awards. A Career Service Awards Pro-
gram was reinstituted with a ceremony
to formally recognize the achievements
of award recipients. This ceremony will
be held twice each fiscal year.

During fiscal year 1985, Commission-
wide policies and procedures were issued
for the handling and safeguarding of
confidential business information. The
procedures are issued to each new Com-
mission employee upon his or her ar-



rival, and at the end of the fiscal year,
an education and awareness program
was being prepared for mandatory at-
tendance by all Commission employees.
The Commission is very aware of the
need to safeguard sensitive information
entrusted to it.

Additionally, during fiscal year 1985,
a high priority was placed on an agency-
wide effort to establish procedures for
records management, including main-
tenance and disposition. In particular,
considerable time was devoted to a
records program for the Commission’s
trade agreements files, which contain, in
- some cases, one-of-a-kind records of past
events pertaining to the Government'’s
international trade negotiations. The
Commission expects to broaden this ef-
fort to encompass all of the Commis-
sion’s functions, since documents are
both received and produced at increased
rates and space utilization will become
more critical to resource management.

In fiscal year 1985, credit card and
travel agency service programs were in-
stituted to implement Governmentwide
cash management initiatives, as well as
to provide better service to employees
traveling on Government business. The
Commission’s financial management pro-
gram is in order, and the Commission
was able to attest to the Congress that it
was in compliance with the Federal
Managers’ Financial Integrity Act.

In its Annual Report for fiscal year
1984, the Commission reported that a
bill was progressing toward enactment
that would transfer the ITC Building
(located at 701 E Street NW., Wash-
ington, DC) to the Smithsonian Institu-
tion for museum and related purposes
without reimbursement and direct the
General Services Administration (GSA)
to relocate the Commission to another
facility in downtown Washington, DC.
The legislation also would direct GSA to
maintain the ITC Building to prevent
further deterioration and to ensure occu-
pant safety until the building is trans-
ferred to the Smithsonian. This bill was
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signed into law on October 19, 1984
(Public Law 98-523). Since the enactment
of this law, the Commission has been
working with GSA to procure space for
relocation in downtown Washington,
DC, that would accommodate all Com-
mission operations at one site. The Com-
mission now operates from three
locations.

At the close of fiscal year 1985, GSA
and the Commission were reviewing
several proposals submitted by lessors
that are offering buildings to be available
for initial occupancy in mid-1987.
Section 2(a) of Public Law 98-<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>